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Mess, Camie

From: Mess, Camie
Sent: Friday, March 22, 2019 4:20 PM
To: Richard Wagner
Cc: Werner, Jeffrey B
Subject: February BAR Actions - 852-854 West Main Street

March 22, 2019  
  
Certificate of Appropriateness 
BAR 19-02-02 
852-854 West Main Street 
Tax Parcel 300003000 
Madison Loft LLC, Owner/ T-Mobile Northeast LLC, Applicant 
Cell Antenna Installation 
 
Dear Applicant,  
  
The above referenced project was discussed before a meeting of the City of Charlottesville Board of Architectural Review 
(BAR) on March 13, 2019. The following action was taken:  

Motion: Schwarz moved having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Design 
Guidelines for New Construction and Additions, I move to find that the proposed cell antenna installation 
satisfies the BAR’s criteria and are compatible with this property and other properties in the West Main Street 
ADC District, and that the BAR approves the application as submitted for this particular case given 

 Should the concealment start to fail it must be replaced 
 Future antenna installation needs to be reviewed and the concealment plan updated 
 The concealment works for this particular case, but may not work in future instances, therefore any 

additional antenna installations need to come back to the BAR for approval 
Sarafin seconded. Approved (6-0.) 

 
If you would like to hear the specifics of the discussion, the meeting video is on-line at: 
http://charlottesville.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=1352 
 
This certificate of appropriateness shall expire in 18 months (September 13, 2020), unless within that time period you 
have either been issued a building permit for construction of the improvements if one is required, or if no building permit 
is required, commenced the project. You may request an extension of the certificate of appropriateness before this 
approval expires for one additional year for reasonable cause. (See City Code Section 34-280. Validity of certificates of 
appropriateness.)  
  
If you have any questions, please contact me at 434-970-3998 or messc@charlottesville.org.  
  
Sincerely,  
Camie Mess 
 
 
Camie Mess 
Assistant Historic Preservation and Design Planner             
City of Charlottesville 
Phone: 434.970.3398  
Email: messc@charlottesville.org 
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CITY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE 
BOARD OF ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 
STAFF REPORT  
February 20, 2019 snowed out; makeup date March 13, 2019 
 
Certificate of Appropriateness 
BAR 19-02-02 
852-854 West Main Street 
Tax Parcel 300003000 
Madison Loft LLC, Owner/ T-Mobile Northeast LLC, Applicant 
Cell Antenna Installation 
 

   
Background 
852-854 and 858-860 West Main Street is a non-contributing mixed use building in the West Main Street ADC 
District. The development was formerly known as the Plaza and is now called the Flats at West Village.  
 
Prior BAR Actions (See appendix) 
     
Application 
Applicant submittal: 

• T-Mobile Northeast LLC submittal dated January 29, 2019: T-Mobile antenna wrapping at 854 West 
Main Street, 3M product cutsheets, additional precedents, cover sheet (sheet A01), general notes (sheets 
GN01-GN02), plan (sheet C02), and section (sheet CO2A). 

 
Request to install three T-Mobile antennas on the rooftop of 852 West Main Street. Proposed antennas will 
extend above roof parapet approximately 7 feet, but will be wrapped with 3M Conceal Film. (Similar antennas 
and wrapping are installed on the rooftop of 854 West Main Street.) 
 
Discussion and Recommendations 
Staff finds the proposed installation appropriate and recommends approval. 
 
Suggested Motions 
Approval: 
Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Design Guidelines for New 
Construction and Additions, I move to find that the proposed cell antenna installation satisfies the BAR’s 
criteria and are compatible with this property and other properties in the West Main Street ADC District, and 
that the BAR approves the application as submitted (or with the following modifications…). 
 
...as submitted and with the following modifications/conditions:...  
 
Denial: 
Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including ADC District Design Guidelines for 
New Construction and Additions, I move to find that the proposed cell antenna installation does not satisfy or 
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the BAR’s criteria and guidelines and is not compatible with this property and other properties in the West Main 
Street ADC District, and for the following reasons the BAR denies the application as submitted:…  
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Criteria, Standards, and Guidelines 
Review Criteria Generally 
Sec. 34-284(b) of the City Code states that,  
In considering a particular application the BAR shall approve the application unless it finds: 
(1) That the proposal does not meet specific standards set forth within this division or applicable provisions of 

the Design Guidelines established by the board pursuant to Sec.34-288(6); and 
(2) The proposal is incompatible with the historic, cultural or architectural character of the district in which the 

property is located or the protected property that is the subject of the application. 
 
Pertinent Standards for Review of Construction and Alterations include: 
1) Whether the material, texture, color, height, scale, mass and placement of the proposed addition, 

modification or construction are visually and architecturally compatible with the site and the applicable 
design control district; 

2) The harmony of the proposed change in terms of overall proportion and the size and placement of entrances, 
windows, awnings, exterior stairs and signs; 

3) The Secretary of the Interior Standards for Rehabilitation set forth within the Code of 
4) Federal Regulations (36 C.F.R. §67.7(b)), as may be relevant; 
5) The effect of the proposed change on the historic district neighborhood; 
6) The impact of the proposed change on other protected features on the property, such as gardens, 

landscaping, fences, walls and walks; 
7) Whether the proposed method of construction, renovation or restoration could have an adverse impact on 

the structure or site, or adjacent buildings or structures; 
8) Any applicable provisions of the City’s Design Guidelines. 
 
Pertinent Guidelines for New Construction and Additions 
G. ROOF 
Roof design, materials, and textures should be consistent with the existing structures in the historic districts. 
Common roof forms include hipped roofs, gable roofs, flat roofs, and gambrel roofs, as well as combinations of 
the above. In general, the roof pitch of an older dwelling is steeper than a new tract house, and this factor is 
more important than the type of roof in most neighborhoods.  
 
3. Rooftop Screening 

a) If roof-mounted mechanical equipment is used, it should be screened from public view on all sides. 
b) The screening material and design should be consistent with the design, textures, materials, and colors 

of the building. 
c) The screening should not appear as an afterthought or addition the building. 

 
Appendix Prior BAR Actions: 
October 16, 2012 – BAR found (4-2 with Graves and Adams opposed) that the special use permit request would 
have an adverse impact on the West Main Street ADC district unless the applicant makes substantial revisions to 
the massing and architectural detailing of the project. The BAR supports increased density and increased 
building height in concept but is not willing to recommend increased density as the project currently stands. 
 
(November 13, 2012 – Planning Commission recommended approval of the SUP with conditions.) 
 
November 20, 2012 – BAR recommended to City Council (7-1 with Adams against) that the proposed special 
use permit to allow increased density (from 43 units per acre to 98 units per acre) and additional building height 
(from 70 to 101 feet) for the redevelopment of 852-860 W Main Street into a mixed use development will not 
have an adverse impact on the West Main Street Architectural Design Control (ADC) District and the BAR 
recommended approval of the special use permit, subject to the usual BAR review. 
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In the discussion they were fairly unanimous that the building design was improved, but not there yet. They 
thought the design needed to be simplified, and beautifully detailed. 
 
(December 3, 2012 – City Council approved Special Use Permit with conditions.) 
 
December 18, 2012 – BAR approved (6-1 with Adams opposed) the general mass, scale, footprint, and general 
architectural design of the building, with the requirements that:  

• additional architectural details be submitted [to the BAR] for the main façade conditions found on both 
West Main Street, and the south and west facades;  

• special attention given to possibility of using brick rather than stucco in spandrel panels;  
• alternate material be considered for some or all of stucco on south side of site;  
• special attention be given to parapet and cornice condition at 5th floor on West Main Street facade;  
• color of aluminum storefronts be reconsidered as suggested;  
• a substantial landscape planting including large native deciduous trees be installed within area between 

RR r/w and property;  
• consideration of other material for the penthouse facades; these studies to include consideration for 

appropriate sizes and proportion of windows. 
 
February 19, 2013 – BAR approved (7-1with Adams against) with the following modifications:  
1. Revision to the balcony in the center bay on West Main Street so that the top floor is a solid parapet; 
2. No stone sills or coping in the brick potions of the building; 
3. Generally monochromatic paint scheme where it relates to the cornice coping and parapets in the hardiplank 
portions of the building; 
4. Brick in recesses and stories in the base of the building; 
5. On side and rear elevations, [use a] paint scheme where the recesses are painted in a slightly darker color than 
the body of the building, including the face of the balcony edge; 
6. No white paint; 
7. Preference for larger hardipanel cladding; 
8. With the understanding that, because the City notions of the streetscape design are evolving, the design for 
the streetscape itself and the way the building meets the street will come back for review, including the lighting 
associated with streetscape improvements. 
 
September 17, 2013 – BAR approved (8-0) construction fence wrap as submitted. The BAR recommends that 
for future fence wraps, including this item, the wrap should have a 1-year timeline, after which time the wrap 
would be removed or the applicant would have to reapply for approval. The preferred style of wrap is banners 
featuring large photographs and renderings. The applicant may use text banners (including the name of building, 
contact information, and other information) only on banners on the corner or ends of the fence wrap. 
 
March 18, 2014 – BAR accepted (5-0) the World of Beer applicant’s deferral request. Some issues are: curved 
retaining wall and wide stair; no pergola next to building; 5 Japanese Maple trees as shown on landscape plan, 
or 3 larger ones; need distressed wood sample; perhaps move blade sign to stair entrance; reduce sizes of wall 
and blade signs; accommodate street tree. 
 
April 15, 2014 – BAR approved (7-0) World of Beer application with modifications: a fence as presented for 
World of Beer will be installed at the adjacent owner’s parcel by the transformers and landscaping will be 
introduced between the transformers and City sidewalk to soften that; and the applicant will resubmit signage as 
part of a Comprehensive Signage Plan for the entire development. 
 
May 20, 2014 - BAR recommended (7-1 with Schwarz opposed) to City Council that the Comprehensive 
Signage Plan should be approved as submitted. 
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August 19, 2014 - BAR approved (7-0) the application as submitted, with a request to pay additional attention to 
detail on the punch list as the building is completed. 
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